DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY -« GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS ¢ PROFESSIONAL FIDUCIARIES BUREAU
1625 North Market Blvd., Suite S-209, Sacramento, CA 95834

P (916) 574-7340 | F (916)574-8645 | www.fiduciary.ca.gov

PROFESSIONAL FIDUCIARIES BUREAU

Professional Fiduciaries Bureau
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, June 12, 2024

Committee Members Present

Bertha Hayden Sanchez, Chair (attending remotely)
Elizabeth Ichikawa, Vice Chair (attending remotely)
Joyce Anthony (attending remotely)

James Moore (attending remotely)

Linda Ng (attending remotely)

Alfred Torregano (attending remotely)

Staff Present
Rebecca May, Bureau Chief, Professional Fiduciaries Bureau
Helen Geoffroy, Legal Counsel, Department of Consumer Affairs

1. Call to Order — Bertha Sanchez Hayden, Chair
Ms. Sanchez Hayden called the meeting to order at 10 a.m.

2. Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum — Rebecca May, Bureau Chief
Ms. May called roll. Committee members Ms. Sanchez Hayden, Ms. Ichikawa, Ms.
Anthony, Mr. Moore, Ms. Ng, and Mr. Torregano were present. A quorum was
established with six members present.

3. Advisory Committee Members, Bureau Chief, Staff and Legal Counsel Introductions
Committee members, Bureau staff, and legal counsel introduced themselves. Ms.
Sanchez Hayden noted that Mr. Torregano, public member, was recently appointed
to the Advisory Committee by the Senate.

4. Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda

Ms. Sanchez Hayden explained this agenda item is intended for the public to comment
on items not included on today’s agenda.

Public Comment: None.

5. Reading of the Professional Fiduciaries Bureau Mission Statement — Rebecca May,
Bureau Chief

Page 1 of 7



Ms. May read the Bureau’s mission statement.
Public Comment: None.

. Discussion and Approval of the Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes from March 19,
2024 — Bertha Sanchez Hayden, Chair

No members suggested edits to the minutes. Ms. Ichikawa motioned to approve the
meeting minutes and to allow Bureau staff to make non-substantive edits as needed.
Joyce Anthony and James Moore seconded the motion simultaneously. There was no
discussion from the committee members.

Public Comment: None.

A roll call vote was held. Ms. Sanchez Hayden, Ms. Ichikawa, Ms. Anthony, Mr. Moore,
Ms. Ng, and Mr. Torregano voted to approve the motion. The motion carried with six
votes. Ms. May noted that the minutes will be posted to the Bureau’s website.

. Update from the Director’s Office — DCA Executive Staff

Korrina Moreno, with Board and Bureau Relations, provided an update on behalf of the
Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA). Ms. Moreno welcomed Mr. Torregano to the
Advisory Committee. She noted the Governor released the May Revision of the 2024-25
proposed budget, reducing and stabilizing the budget after the COVID 19 pandemic. The
Budget proposal proposes one time spending cuts of $19 billion and ongoing spending
by $13 billion through 2025-26, nearly 8% cut to state operations. Elimination of 10000
vacant state positions. DCA will provide additional guidance to programs once it gets
more guidance from DOF. Boards and Bureaus should continue to scrutinize
expenditures and maximize savings. DCA hosted a live webinar to share licensing
resources for military and their families. She noted that DCA Director and Business,
Consumer Services and Housing Agency Sectary Tomiquia Moss will meet with board
and bureau leadership at the quarterly director’'s meeting on June 11. She noted a recent
scam targeting licensees that wherein an individual identifies themself as board or
bureau staff and the licensee is under investigation seeking to gather personal
information or payment. She provided an update regarding DCA’s Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion (DEI) Steering Committee and provided information on training opportunities.
Ms. Moreno noted that Advisory Committee members are required to attend a Board
Member Orientation Training (BMOT) within one year of appointment and noted BMOT

Page 2 of 7



will be offered on June 18 and October 22.

Public Comment: None.
. Budget Report — DCA Budget Analyst

Andrew Trute, Budget Analyst, Department of Consumer Affairs, provided the Bureau'’s
budget update including the Bureau’s expenditure projections and fund condition
statement. Related to expenditures, Mr. Trute noted the projections are based on actual
data through fiscal month ten and includes 2022-23 actual expenditures compared to
the 2023-24 budgeted and projected expenditures. Mr. Trute stated the Bureau had
budgeted approximately $1.078 million and is projected to spend $828,000 creating a
reversion to the Bureau’s fund of approximately $293,000 or 26.17%. He further noted
the Bureau's revenue projection document includes receipts collected through April and
provides projected revenues to year end.

Mr. Trute reviewed the Bureau’s fund condition statement. He noted the Bureau began
fiscal year 2022-23 with a beginning balance of just over $317,000 and collected
$657,000 in revenue, with $78,000 from initial license fees, $544,000 from license
renewals, and $35,000 from the issuance of citation fines, delinquent fees and other
revenue. He reported the Bureau expended nearly $720,000, which includes $52,000
indirect draws to the fund for statewide pro-rata and pension payments. He estimated
the Bureau will close fiscal year 2022-23 with $254,000 reserve balance or 3.5 months
in reserve.

Mr. Trute provided that for the current year, the Bureau projects revenues of $805,000
which includes the new fee increase with approximately $116,000 projected from initial
license fees, $653,000 from renewal fees and $36,000 from the issuance of citation
fines, delinquent fees and other revenues. He further provided the Bureau's fiscal year
2023-24 expenditures, based on the Budget Act, to be $874,000 between authorized
expenditures and direct draws to the fund, leaving the Bureau with a fund balance of
$185,000 or 1.9 months in reserve.

Mr. Trute stated the DCA Budget Office will continue to monitor the Bureau’s revenues
and expenditures and report back to the Bureau with monthly expenditure projections.
He noted that the fund condition is a snapshot in time, and includes 2023-24 projected
revenue including increased application, initial and renewal fees, noting the that
increased renewal fee begins for licenses expiring on March 31, 2024, and after. He
also noted that revenue is projected static in the out years.

He stated one of the main factors driving future expenditure increases is personnel

Page 3 of 7



service adjustments including general salary increases, employee compensation, as
well as retirement rate adjustments. He stated the Budget Office includes a
conservative ongoing 3% increase to expenditures on the fund condition statement to
account for ongoing, incremental adjustments. He noted any future legislation or
unanticipated events could result in the need for additional resources which would
create cost pressures on the fund.

Ms. Ng asked if the use of “year to date” in the projections meant to the end of May or to
the end of the fiscal year. Mr. Trute clarified that it meant through the end of April. Ms.
Ng noted based on past performance, is it safe to say the bureau will exceed its
projections for the year? Harmony DeFilippo noted that the projections are slightly
higher than the original projections for revenue. Ms. Ng noted this is a positive
development and that with two more months remaining in the fiscal year the Bureau
may net another $100,000 in revenue and exceed the projections. Harmony clarified
that the current year projection was $794,000, and the total revenue for fiscal months
you can tell that there is a fluctuation month to month. Projecting increase to continue
based on increased fees and slightly higher than what was originally projected. Ms. Ng
commended the Bureau in doing a good job in collecting revenue.

Public comment: None.
. Legislative Update and Discussion — DCA Legislative Analyst

Aubrey Hopkins, Legislative Analyst, Department of Consumer Affairs provided
important upcoming 2024 legislative dates and an update regarding bills affecting the
Bureau including information on the text and status of AB 2148 (Low) and AB 2800
(Kalra).

Mr. Torregano asked if there was significant pushback on AB 2800 resulting in it being
held and if a vote was held. Ms. Hopkins responded that the bill was referred to the
Assembly Aging and Long-Term Care committee but was not heard at the request of
the author. She stated she is unsure of the reason the author decided to hold the bill,
but noted there was no registered support or opposition to the bill.

Public comment: Jerry Desmond on behalf of the Professional Fiduciaries Association
of California (PFAC) noted PFAC'’s support for AB 2148. He stated the bill resolves
several issues, including courts appointing organizations in representative capacity
despite the Probate Code not authorizing the practice, the Probate Code being silent as
to who a testator can name as the executor of a trust there are no restrictions on the
ability to name an entity regardless of the licensure status of the members of that entity

Page 4 of 7



to serve in representative capacities, and the bureau lacks authority over fiduciary
entities or members acting on behalf of that entity.

10. Presentation Regarding Incorporating Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) objectives in

11.

the Bureau’s 2023-2026 Strategic Plan — DCA SOLID Staff

Ms. Trisha St. Clair, SOLID staff, provided information regarding the Bureau and DCA’s
supplemental plan to incorporate DEI objectives into the Bureau’s 2023-2026 Strategic
Plan. She noted the Governor’s Executive Order N-16-22 requiring all departments to
include equity analysis and considerations into their policies and procedures and the
need to update the existing Bureau’s Strategic Plan with a DEI outlook. She then
reviewed the process for supplemental DEI planning.

Public comment: None.
Bureau Updates — Rebecca May, Bureau Chief

e Application, Licensing and Enforcement Statistics - Ms. May presented application,
licensing and enforcement statistics from July 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024.

e Outreach Events — Ms. May noted there were no outreach events since the last
Advisory Committee meeting and there are no upcoming outreach events. She
encouraged meeting attendees to email the Bureau regarding outreach events

o E-Newsletter — Ms. May noted that the spring newsletter is almost finished and will
likely be distributed to the Bureau’s interested parties list and posted to the website
next week. She also noted if there are any items members would like to see in the
newsletter to please reach out to the Bureau.

e Website Updates — Ms. May stated that the Bureau continues to update its website,
including significant updates to the education page, and updates to the Annual
Statement and Initial Annual Statement forms. She noted the Bureau is working with
DCA on updating its application how-to video and plans to make significant updates
to the applicant page.

e Hiring enforcement staff — Ms. May noted that the Bureau has conducted interviews
and is working with DCA’s Office of Human Resources on extending an offer of
employment. She stated that she is hopeful the Bureau will have a new enforcement
analyst on staff by the end of the fiscal year.

Page 5 of 7



e Strategic Plan Update — Ms. May stated that the Bureau continues to advance on its
strategic plan, noting the plans to add DEI objectives, moving to paperless, purging,
scanning documents, cross training between licensing and enforcement staff, and
working on desk manuals.

Ms. Anthony asked about if the total issued licensee number includes licenses that were
never renewed. Ms. May noted that the numbers do not reflect delinquent and canceled
licenses. She further noted that the Bureau only started providing retired and inactive
license types on January 1, 2023, and that there is interest among licensees to pursue
these license status types. Ms. Anthony also noted that the third quarter reflects fewer
renewals than the previous two quarters and asked if that was related to the fee
increase or if it was typical for the third quarter. Ms. May stated that she did not know
but would look into it. She further stated that because the revenue projections are a little
higher than anticipated, and renewals were based on birth month when the Bureau was
formed, it may be attributable to quarter three having fewer renewals generally. She
noted that she would report about it at the next meeting. Ms. Anthony agreed and noted
it would be good to determine if the fee increase is a barrier to entry or continuation in
the profession.

Public comment: None.

12.Proposed Rulemaking Status Update — Rebecca May, Bureau Chief

13.

Ms. May stated the Bureau filed a “Section 100” change related to licensing processing
times with the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) on May 6. She explained that a
“Section 100” is a change to an existing regulation without “regulatory effect,” essentially
a non-substantive change that does not need to go through the regular rulemaking
process. She anticipates OAL will determine whether to approve the Section 100 in the
coming days and she will provide an update at the next meeting.

Public comment: None.
Future Agenda ltems — Rebecca May, Bureau Chief

Ms. May noted there were no specific items requested, but that she would report at the
next meeting regarding trends in renewals in her Bureau Chief Update.

Public comment: “Chris” asked if it would be possible to get an update regarding current

licensing timelines stating that he and other applicants have reached the 30-day
timeline to be issued a license. Ms. May responded that the meeting materials are

Page 6 of 7



prepared in advance of the meeting and the licensing statistics only reflect data through
March 31, so she does not have statistics for the last two months to share presently.
She noted that the next meeting will include statistics for the entire fiscal year 23-24 and
if an applicant is having any issues with their application to please reach out to the
Bureau.

e Future Meeting Dates

Ms. Sanchez Hayden provided the following confirmed meeting dates and tentative
2025 meeting dates: Wednesday, September 11, 2024; Wednesday, December 11,
2024; Wednesday, March 12, 2025; Wednesday, June 11, 2025; Wednesday,
September 10, 2025; and, Wednesday, December 10, 2025.

Public comment: None.

14. Adjournment
Ms. Sanchez Hayden adjourned the meeting at 10:58 a.m.

Page 7 of 7






Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		20240612_minutes.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 0



		Passed manually: 2



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 0



		Passed: 30



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Passed manually		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Passed manually		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top

